
DISTRICT BOARD 
Megan Clark 

Rabi Elias 

Craig K. Murray 

Judy Schriebman 

Crystal J. Yezman 

DISTRICT ADMINISTRATION 
Mike Prinz,  
General Manager 
Michael Cortez,  
District Engineer 
Mel Liebmann, 
Plant Manager 
Greg Pease,  
Collection System/Safety Manager 
Robert Ruiz,  
Administrative Services Manager 

300 Smith Ranch Road  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  www.lgvsd.org 

The Mission of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District is to 
protect public health and the environment by providing effective 
wastewater collection, treatment, and recycling services. 

BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
March 14, 2019 

MATERIALS RELATED TO ITEMS ON THIS AGENDA ARE AVAILABLE FOR 
PUBLIC INSPECTION DURING NORMAL BUSINESS HOURS AT THE DISTRICT 

  OFFICE, 300 SMITH RANCH ROAD, SAN RAFAEL, OR ON THE DISTRICT 
 WEBSITE  WWW.LGVSD.ORG 

1. PUBLIC COMMENT
This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Board on matters not on the
agenda and within the jurisdiction of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District. Presentations are generally
limited to three minutes. All matters requiring a response will be referred to staff for reply in writing and/or
placed on a future meeting agenda. Please contact the General Manager before the meeting.

2. CONSENT CALENDAR:
These items are considered routine and will be enacted, approved or adopted by one motion

unless a request for removal for discussion or explanation is received from the staff or the Board.
A. Approve the Board Minutes for February 28, 2019
B. Approve the Warrant List and possible Addendum for March 14, 2019
C. Approve Board Compensation for February 2019

Possible expenditure of funds:  Yes, item B and C. 

Staff recommendation:  Adopt Consent Calendar – Items A through C. 

3. APPROVE DRAFT PROPOSITION 218 PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE REGARDING FY 2019/20
SEWER SERVICE CHARGE INCREASE
Board to approve Draft Proposition 218 Public Hearing Notice Regarding FY 2019/20
Sewer service charge increase.

4:40 PM 

 

3:30 PM 

Estimated 
Time 

4:30 PM 

4:35 PM 



March 14, 2019 Page 2 of 3 
  

  

  
 
300 Smith Ranch Road  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  www.lgvsd.org 

 
 

4. CALL FOR BIDS – ON-CALL CONTRACT FOR CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS 
Board to discuss and approve the On-Call Contract for Construction Projects. 

 

5. SECONDARY TREATMENT PLANT UPGRADE AND RECYCLED WATER EXPANSION PROJECT – 
DEDUCTION OF BID ALTERNATE ADDITIVES, ITEMS NOS. A.1  - A.5  
Per Public Contract Code Section 20103.8, Board to discuss Resolution 2019-2157 to approve deduction 
of Bid Alternate Additive Items Nos. A1-A5 (UV Disinfectant System) from the Secondary Treatment Plant 
Upgrade and Recycled Water Expansion Project contract that was previously awarded to Myers & Sons 
Construction LLC. 

 

6. INFORMATION ITEMS: 
A. STAFF/CONSULTANT REPORTS: 

1. General Manager Report – Verbal 

7. BOARD REPORTS: 
1. LAFCO - Verbal 
2. Gallinas Watershed Council / Miller Creek Watershed Council– Verbal 
3. JPA Local Task Force on Solid and Hazardous Waste – Verbal 
4. Flood Zone 7 – Verbal  
5. NBWA – Verbal  
6. NBWRA/North Bay Water – Verbal  
7. Engineering Subcommittee – Verbal 
8. Other Reports – Verbal  

 

8. BOARD REQUESTS: 
A. Board Meeting Attendance Requests – Verbal 

B. Board Agenda Item Requests – Verbal 

9. VARIOUS ARTICLES AND MISCELLANEOUS DISTRICT CORRESPONDENCE 

10. ADJOURNMENT 

11. FUTURE BOARD MEETING DATES – MARCH 28, 2019, APRIL 11, 2019 AND APRIL 25, 2019 

 
 

 

5:00 PM 
 

5:20 PM 
 

6:15 PM 
 

6:20 PM 
 

5:50 PM 
 

6:25 PM 
 
 

6:00 PM 
 



March 14, 2019 Page 3 of 3 
  

  

  
 
300 Smith Ranch Road  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  www.lgvsd.org 

 

 

CERTIFICATION:  I, Teresa Lerch, District Secretary of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District, hereby 
declare under penalty of perjury that on or before March 11, 2019 at 4:30 p.m., I posted the Agenda for the 
Board Meeting of said Board to be held March 14, 2019 at the District Office, located at 300 Smith Ranch 
Road, San Rafael, CA. 

DATED: March 11, 2019 
 
 

_______________________ 
Teresa L. Lerch 
District Secretary 
 

  _________________________________________________________________  

The Board of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District meets regularly on the second and fourth Thursday of  
each month. The District may also schedule additional special meetings for the purpose of completing unfinished 
business and/or study session. Regular meetings are held at the District Office, 300 Smith Ranch Road,  
San Rafael. 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, 
please contact the District at (415) 472-1734 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. Notification  
prior to the meeting will enable the District to make reasonable accommodation to help ensure accessibility  
to this meeting. 

 
 
 

 

AGENDA APPROVED: Craig K. Murray, Board President Pat Richardson, Legal Counsel 



 Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 3 February 28, 2019 

 MINUTES OF FEBRUARY 28, 2019 1 
2 

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT MET IN OPEN 3 
SESSION ON FEBRUARY 28, 2019 AT 4:31 PM,  AT THE DISTRICT OFFICE, 300 SMITH RANCH 4 
ROAD, SAN RAFAEL, CALIFORNIA. 5

6
BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: M. Clark, R. Elias, C. Murray, J. Schriebman and   7 

C. Yezman 8
9

BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT: None. 10 
 11 
STAFF PRESENT: Mike Prinz , General Manager; Teresa Lerch, District 12 

Secretary; Mel Liebman, Plant Manager; Greg Pease, 13 
Collection System and Safety Manager;  Robert Ruiz, 14 
Administrative Services Manager 15 

 16 
OTHERS PRESENT: Patrick Richardson, District Counsel; 17 
 18 
 ANNOUNCEMENT: President Murray announced that the agenda had been 19 

posted as evidenced by the certification on file in 20 
accordance with the law 21 

 22 
PUBLIC COMMENT: None. 23 
 24 
Pursuant to Government Code section 54954.2(b)(2), Richardson requested that the following item be 25 
added to the Consent Calendar Item 2D – Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District letter to CalRecycle 26 
regarding SB 1383. 27 
 28 
ACTION: 29 
Board approved (M/S Schriebman/Elias 5-0-0-0) adding to the Consent Calendar Item 2D – Las Gallinas 30 
Valley Sanitary District letter to CalRecycle regarding SB 1383. 31 

32 
         AYES:       Clark, Elias, Murray and Schriebman and Yezman. 33 
         NOES:      None. 34 
        ABSENT:   None. 35 
       ABSTAIN:   None. 36 

 37 
CONSENT CALENDAR:  38 
These items are considered routine and will be enacted, approved or adopted by one motion unless a request for 39 
removal for discussion or explanation is received from the staff or the Board. 40 

A. Approve the Board Minutes for  February 14, 2019 41 
B. Approve the Warrant List for February 28, 2019 42 
C. Approve Contract to Brown and Caldwell for Engineering Serivces during Construction for the 43 

Secondary Treatment Plant Upgrade and Recycled Water Expansion (Project). 44 
D. Approve Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District letter to CalRecycle regarding SB 1383. 45 

46 
Item A was pulled for discussion. 47 
 48 
Item A was discussed. 49 

50 
51 
52 
53 
54 
55 

Agenda item 2A
March 14, 2019

2A.1



 Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 3 February 28, 2019 
  

ACTION: 56 
Board approved (M/S Schriebman/Elias 5-0-0-0) the Consent Calendar item A through D amending item 57 
A to reflect Schreibman’s written documentation in Board Reports. 58 
 59 
          AYES:       Clark, Elias, Murray and Schriebman and Yezman. 60 
          NOES:      None.  61 
         ABSENT:   None. 62 
        ABSTAIN:   None, 63 
 64 
MARIN LAFCO ELECTION FOR SPECIAL DISTRICT MEMBER 65 
Lew Kious spoke to the Board. Board ranked their first, second and third choices.   66 
 67 
COLLECTION SYSTEM MASTER PLAN SCOPE REVISION AND REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS – 68 
INTEGRATED WASTEWATER MASTER PLAN 69 
Board and staff discussed changing the Collection System Master Plan Scope Revision and a request for 70 
proposals for an integrated Wastewater Master Plan. 71 
 72 
ACTION: 73 
Board approved (M/S Elias/Clark 5-0-0-0)  a scope revision of the Collection System Master Plan to expand 74 
it into a District-wide, multiphase, integrated wastewater masterplan scope, with Phase 1 budget being 75 
funded from the current $200,000 Collection System Master Plan appropriation and authorized issuance of 76 
a request for proposals for the Master Plan which does not include growth related impacts. 77 
. 78 
          AYES:       Clark, Elias, Murray and Schriebman and Yezman. 79 
          NOES:      None.  80 
         ABSENT:   None. 81 
        ABSTAIN:   None 82 
 83 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING DAY AND TIME DISCUSSION 84 
Board and staff discussed potential changes to the regular meeting schedule.  85 
 86 
ACTION: 87 
Board approved (M/S Murray/Schriebman 5-0-0-0) directing staff and District Counsel to prepare a draft 88 
Ordinance proposing to change the Regular Board Meeting days to the First and Third Thursdays 89 
 at 4:30 pm. 90 
. 91 
          AYES:       Clark, Elias, Murray and Schriebman and Yezman. 92 
          NOES:      None.  93 
         ABSENT:   None. 94 
        ABSTAIN:   None 95 
 96 
BOARD MEMBER OUTSIDE COMMITTEE MEETING ATTENDANCE COMPENSATION 97 
Board  and staff discussed and clarified criteria for committee meeting attendance compensation. Board 98 
directed staff to revise Board policies and bring this item  back to a Board meeting for review. 99 
 100 
BOARD COMPENSATION FOR JANUARY 2019 101 
Board discussed January Board meeting compensation. 102 
 103 
INFORMATION ITEMS: 104 
STAFF / CONSULTANT REPORTS: 105 

1. General Manager Report – Verbal – Prinz reported. 106 
2. Administration Department Quarterly Report – Written – Ruiz reported. 107 

 108 
Richardson left at 6:15 pm. 109 
 110 
 111 

 
2A.2



 Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 3 February 28, 2019 

INFORMATION ITEMS CONTINUED: 112 
113 

3. Collection Department Quarterly Report – Written – Pease reported.114 
4. Engineering Department Quarterly Report – Written – Cortez reported.115 
5. Operations Department Quarterly Report – Written – Liebmann reported.116 

 117 
Cortez, Liebmann and Pease left at 6:30 pm. 118 
 119 
BOARD REPORTS: 120 

1. LAFCO – Verbal – no report.121 
2. Gallinas Watershed Council / Miller Creek Watershed Council – Verbal – no report.122 
3. JPA Local Task Force on Solid and Hazardous Waste – Verbal – no report.123 
4. Flood Zone 7– Verbal – Yezman reported.124 
5. NBWA125 

Board Committee – Verbal – no report.126 
Executive Committee – Verbal – no report.127 
JTC – Verbal – no report.128 

6. NBWRA /North Bay Water – Verbal – no report.129 
7. Engineering Subcommittee – Verbal – no report.130 
8. Other Reports – Verbal – Schreibman reported on the Environmental Forum of Marin Living Building131 

Seminar and Murray reported on a Rails to Trails Webinar.132 
 133 
BOARD REQUESTS: 134 

A. Board Meeting Attendance Requests – none. 135 
B. Board Agenda Item Requests – Yezman requested that the next three upcoming Board meeting 136 

dates be listed on the Agenda. 137 
 138 
VARIOUS ARTICLES AND MISCELLANEOUS DISTRICT CORRESPONDENCE: 139 
Discussion ensued.  140 
 141 
ADJOURNMENT: 142 
 143 
ACTION: 144 
Board approved (M/S Clark/Elias 5-0-0-0) the adjournment of the meeting at 6:44 p.m. 145 

AYES: Clark, Elias, Murray, Schriebman and Yezman. 146 
NOES: None. 147 
ABSENT:    None. 148 
ABSTAIN: None. 149 

 150 
The next Board Meeting is scheduled for March 14, 2019 at the District Office. 151 

152 
 153 
ATTEST: 154 

155 
 156 
_________________________________ 157 
Teresa Lerch, District Secretary 158 

159 
 160 
APPROVED: 161 

162 
 163 
____________________________________   164 
Craig K. Murray, Board President 165 
 166 
SEAL 167 

2A.3



2B.1



2C.1



2C.2



2C.3



2C.4



2C.5



2C.6



2C.7



2C.8



Rate Change Explained

At a public hearing on June 11, 2015, in  
conformance with the requirements of Prop-
osition 218, the District approved a five-year 
sewer service charge increase plan. The inital 
rate increase took effect on July 1, 2015. 

Funds from sewer service charges are used 
for all District sewer services, including: 
maintenance, replacement and updating of 
aging sewer system facilities to meet new 
stringent regulatory requirements. Making 
critical improvements helps the District 
protect public health, safeguards the environ-
ment, and avoids costly regulatory fines. 

To cover the cost of these critical services and  
upgrades, the District proposes increasing the 
rate from $898 to $927 per year per sanitary 
sewer unit (an increase of $2.42 per month) 
effective July 1, 2019. 

How the District Keeps Costs Down  
The District maintains a small staff and  
proactively plans for and makes responsible 
investments in infrastructure and improve-
ments. Good compliance with regulatory 
requirements has helped the District avoid 
costly fines that have been imposed on other 
sanitary agencies.

April 23, 2019

NOTICE TO PROPERTY OWNERS

Because of legal noticing requirements, you may receive more than one copy 
of this notice. This notice applies to all properties receiving service from 
Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District.

300 Smith Ranch Road
San Rafael, CA 94903

Board of Directors
Craig K. Murray
Megan Clark
Rabi Elias
Judy Schriebman
Crystal Yezman

District Administration
Mike Prinz, General Manager

ATTEND THE RATE HEARING: June 13, 2019 at 4:30 pm at the District’s office,
300 Smith Ranch Road, San Rafael, CA  94903

WEB: www.lgvsd.org     PHONE: 415-472-1734     EMAIL: info@lgvsd.org

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, 
please contact the District at (415) 472-1734 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. Notification prior to the meeting will 

enable the District to make reasonable accommodation to help ensure accessibility to this meeting.

This notice is being sent pursuant to Government Code § 53756(d).   •   Printed on recycled paper using soy ink.

Presorted
Standard

US Postage
PAID

Unicorn Group

To Protest the Proposed Changes

Protests against the proposed changes in the 
sewer service charge must be submitted in 
writing to the District before the end of the 
public hearing to be held on June 13, 2019 at 
4:30 pm. Protests must identify the owner(s) 
of the property or properties for which the 
protest is entered, and be signed by the 
property owner. If a majority of owners of 
affected parcels within the District submit 
written protests against the proposed changes, 
the District will not approve the sewer service 
charge increases.

How the Funds are Being Used
While the majority of the funding is being 
reserved and used for the current expansion 
and upgrade of  the treatment plant ($60 
million), LGVSD has completed, or is working 
on, the following projects:

• Rehabilitating sewer and lower lateral
pipelines.

• Increasing capacity of sewer mains for
high flow events.

• Rehabilitating pump stations and improving
force mains.

• Maintaining facilities to avoid equipment
failure, make emergency repairs when neces-
sary, and replace vehicles and equipment.

• Constructed a Biogas Energy Recovery
System (replacing an over 25 year old
methane fueled generator) which also
generates CNG (compressed natural gas)
to fuel the District’s new CNG sewer
maintenance truck.

• Rehabilitation of the primary digester to
improve solids decomposition and increase
methane production for power generation
and vehicle fuel.

Our Commitment
to Excellence

Public Education and Outreach Award
Three-County Area

2012, 2013, 2014, 2015, 2016

Collection System of the Year
Three-County Area

2008, 2010, 2012, 2016 

Excellence in Financial Reporting, 
Certificate of Achievement, 2017

District Transparency Certificate of 
Excellence by the Special District

Leadership Foundation

June 13, 2019 Public Hearing on Sewer Service Charge Increase
The District will hold a public hearing on its proposed 2019-20 budget and sewer rates 
on Thursday, June 13, 2019, at 4:30 pm at the District’s office, 300 Smith Ranch Road, 
San Rafael, CA 94903. In 2015, a plan was approved by the District Board of Directors 
that detailed sewer service charges through 2019-20. The proposed 2019-20 increase will 
be reviewed by the Board for approval at the June 13 public hearing.

DRAFT

Agenda Item 3
March 14, 2019

3.1



Summary of Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District
Sewer Service Charges for July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020

This is the final  year in a five-year program of rate changes approved in 2015. The amount 
and method for calculating charges for various classes of customer are outlined below.

Residential Rates Beginning July 1, 2019
Residential Rates: The annual sewer service charge for single family homes or similar residential 
units such as condominiums and mobile homes will be set at an amount of no more than $927 per 
living unit for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2019. Multi-family residential units such as apartments 
are charged 90% of the annual single family home sewer service charge.

Non-Residential Rates Beginning July 1, 2019
Non-Residential Rates: The rates for non-residential customers are proportional to the increase in res-
idential rates. Rates are calculated individually for each type of non-residential use as described below.

Domestic strength users: 
Commercial, office buildings, 
retail, churches, halls, public agen-
cies, laundromats, service stations, 
medical offices, hospitals, conva-
lescent/nursing homes, barber/
beauty shops, and car washes

High strength users: 
 Bakeries

Markets with disposals

 Restaurants/Cafes

Mortuaries, mixed uses/ 
other, hotels with restaurants

Industrial and other 
high-strength users

The annual sewer service 
charge rate times the average 
summer and winter water use 
times a strength factor of:

 1.0

 3.2

 2.6

 2.4

 2.0

Contact the District for
information and assistance

Schools without showers 
or cafeteria facilities 

Schools with showers 
or cafeteria facilities

To calculate water use, the 
District obtains the average 
of winter and summer water 
usage for each non-residential 
customer from the Marin
Municipal Water District.
This data is then converted to 
equivalent single family resi-
dential units (or sanitary sewer 
units). Water used solely for 
irrigation and recycled water 
which does not enter the sewer 
system, i.e. water not used 
for toilet flushing, laundry, 
commercial car washes, etc., is 
excluded from the calculation.

User Classes        Rate Calculation          Water Use Calculation

0.01 times the annual sewer service charge rate per average daily 
attendance for students, faculty, and employees

0.02 times the annual sewer service charge rate per average daily 
attendance for students, faculty, and employees

* Reflects cost for customers in the City of Sausalito

0 300 600 900 1200 1500

Novato

San Rafael

Las Gallinas

Corte Madera

Richardson	 Bay

Tamalpais CSD

Larkspur/Ross

Sausalito/Marin City*

Belvedere/Tiburon

Sewer Rate Comparison	in	Marin	County
Projected for July 1, 2018

Sewer	Charge

Property
Tax

Belvedere/Tiburon

Sausalito/Marin City**

Larkspur/Ross

Tamalpais CSD

Richardson Bay

Corte Madera 

Las Gallinas Valley SD

San Rafael

Novato

*Agencies also receive property tax revenue to fund
operations. These revenues are a significant source of 
funding and vary greatly among sewer districts and cities 
providing services.

0

30

60

90

120

150

$75$72

$149

$103

CELL
PHONE
(3 users)

CABLE
TV

Source: JD Powers, survey of major cell phone carriers

LGVSD
CURRENT

LGVSD
PROPOSED

Monthly Bill Comparisons

**Reflects cost for customers in the City of Sausalito.

LGVSD Rates* Remain Below 
Marin County Average
The annual cost of sewer service for a typical 
District single family residential customer 
(or sanitary sewer unit) are below the average 
median of comparable Marin County 
communities.

Moving Forward on the Treatment Plant Upgrade

In order to address critical issues (aging  
infrastructure, changes in wastewater content, 
and new regulations), the District is embarking 
on one of the largest projects in the District’s 
history with the Treatment Plant upgrade.
Construction started in January, 2019. When 
complete, LGVSD will be able to deliver full  
secondary biological treatment capacity for 
flows up to 18 million gallons per day (MGD) 
and raise the elevation of the secondary  
treatment facilities to make the plant more 
resilient against flooding and the impacts of   
sea level rise.

In addition, the District and Marin Municipal 
Water District (MMWD) have agreed to 
expand the existing LGVSD Recycled Water 
Treatment Facility. The expanded facility will 
replace the existing MMWD facility which 
has reached the end of its useful life, allowing 
LGVSD to operate a single recycled water 
treatment plant. The expansion will improve 
efficiency and is expected to lower the cost to 
produce recycled water.

Plans have been developed for the construction 
of an administration building. This will be 
built when funds become available.

Sewer Charge

Property Tax*

Sewer Rate
Comparison
in Marin 
County
Projected for 
July 1, 2019

$77$75

$107
Fortune

DRAFT
3.2



Agenda Summary Report    

To: Mike Prinz, General Manager 
From: Michael P. Cortez, PE, District Engineer 
Mtg. Date: March 14, 2019 
Re: Call for Bids – On-Call Contract for Construction Projects 

BACKGROUND: 

Miscellaneous, small scope system improvements are regularly identified within the District that do not rise 
to the level of competitively bid, large scale, engineered CIP projects.  Once identified, these 
improvements are typically deferred until they can be added to the scope of a large CIP project.  This 
deferral typically results in compromised system performance until the improvement can be made.  
Implementation of these small improvements often brings substantial operational benefit despite their 
relatively low cost.  In addition to these small system improvements, needs for emergency construction 
response can arise due to unanticipated conditions or events, such as latent system defects or regional 
disasters that affect District infrastructure.  An effective mechanism to efficiently address small scope 
improvements and urgent emergency construction needs is an ‘on-call’ contract with a licensed, local 
construction contractor. 

Bidding documents for the On-Call Contract for Construction Projects have been prepared by District staff 
and are ready for advertisement. This contact will allow the District to have a standby contractor available 
to perform [1] small projects that can be typically completed in one week and [2] emergency construction 
response efforts. The contract duration is 24 months with and a maximum budget of $200,000, which is 
currently appropriated in various collections and treatment plant CIP accounts.  Once the funds are fully 
utilized or the contract duration is fulfilled, the contract is subject to rebid or renewal pending staff 
evaluation of contractor performance and District Board approval. 

Compensation for each on-call effort based on time and expense tracking according to force account rates 
as outlined in the current Labor Surcharge & Equipment Rental Rate Book published regularly by Caltrans 
Division of Construction. The competitive basis of award for the contract is the bidder’s labor markup.  This 
labor markup is applied by the successful bidder to the hourly rate of all trades used on any given 
construction effort.  Actual payment is made according to detailed work orders describing each individual 
on-call effort. 

This contract requires a response time of 24 hours for emergency projects or 10 business days for non-
emergency projects.  The contract includes the ability to invoke FEMA contracting requirements during 
periods of formally declared emergencies, which will allow the District to pursue FEMA reimbursement 
when necessary.  The contract form has been reviewed and approved by the District Counsel. 

The tentative project schedule is as follows: 

• Call for bids: March 14, 2019 
• Non-mandatory bid walk: March 27, 2019
• Bid opening: April 10, 2019 
• Notice of award: April 25, 2019 

Consent ______________ 
Staff/Consultant Reports ______________ 
Agenda Item ______4________ 

Da  t e    March 14, 2019

4.1



 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Board to approve the Call for Bids for On-Call Contract for Construction Projects. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
Initial budget of $175,000 for FY 2019-2020.  
 
PERSON(S) TO BE NOTIFIED: 
 
N/A 

4.2



X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2019\Agenda Packets 2019\03142019\STPURWE - Ultra Violet Disinfection System - Alternate Bid Item Deduction 
031420109Rev1.docx Page 1 of 2 

Agenda Summary Report    

To: Board of Directors 
From: Mike Prinz, General Manager 
Mtg. Date: March 14, 2019 
Re: Secondary Treatment Plant Upgrade and Recycled Water Expansion Project – 

Deduction of Bid Alternate Additives, Items Nos. A.1 – A.5 

BACKGROUND: 
The District’s very significant Secondary Treatment Plant Upgrade and Recycled Water Expansion 
(STPURWE) Project was awarded to Myers & Sons Construction (MSC) on November 15, 2018 for the 
base bid amount of $46,426,454.  The Ultra Violet Disinfection System alternate bid items A.1-A.5 were 
also awarded according to Table 1 below:   

Table 1: UV Bid Alternate 
Bid Item Description Amount 

A.1 UV Building (Less Caissons) $1,900,000 
A.2 UV Building Drilled Pier Caissons $187,000 
A.3 Owner Selected Equipment (Suez) $589,485 
A.4 Deduction of Dechlorination Chemical Storage & 

Dosing Facility (Excluding Electrical Work) 
-$300,000 

A.5 Deduction of Dechlorination Chemical Storage & 
Dosing Facility – Electrical Work 

-$100,000 

NET TOTAL $2,196,485 

The basis of award of the Contract was the base bid amount only. 

The purpose of the STPURWE Project is to increase the Plant’s secondary treatment capacity from 
8 million gallons per day (MGD) to 18 MGD and to increase the Plant’s recycled water production capacity 
from 1.4 MGD to 5.4 MGD.  Disinfection system replacement is not necessary to achieve the purpose of 
the Project. 

Due to concerns about future expandability of the proposed UV disinfection system, several aspects of the 
design basis of the UV system, and the functional state of the District’s existing disinfection system, staff 
reevaluated the operational value of the UV proposed disinfection system.  In the context the STPURWE 
Project purpose, Staff have determined that pursuit of the UV disinfection system is not warranted at this 
time.  MSC was notified of the potential rescission of the alternate bid item on February 22, 2019. 

Staff presented the proposal to deduct the UV alternate bid items to the LGVSD ad hoc Engineering 
Subcommittee on March 1, 2019.  The presentation included additional recommendations that the Board 
fund the pursuit of a flow equalization project with funds previously allocated to the alternate bid item and 
prioritize a disinfection system through the Master Plan development authorized at the Board Meeting of 
February 28, 2019.   After a series of questions, the subcommittee unanimously supported all 

Consent ______________ 
Staff/Consultant Reports ______________ 
Agenda Item ______5________ 

Da  t e      March 14, 2019

 
5.1



 
 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2019\Agenda Packets 2019\03142019\STPURWE - Ultra Violet Disinfection System - Alternate Bid Item Deduction 
031420109Rev1.docx Page 2 of 2 

recommendations of the proposal.  Public Contracts Code §20103.8 allows the Board to remove this 
alternate bid item from the contract and District Counsel has prepared a Resolution to that effect. 
 
All consultants involved in the design of the STPURWE project, in addition to the District Engineer and 
Plant Operations Staff, support deduction of the alternate bid item. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the Board, by motion: 

1. Deduct the award to MSC of the UV Alternate Bid Items per Table 1 above in the net amount of 
$2,196,485, less costs substantiated by MSC. Adequacy of substantiation will be determined by the 
District Engineer and the General Manager. 

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute a deductive change order to MSC in the amount 
described in bullet number 1 above. 

3. Pursue implementation of a flow equalization project contemporaneously with the construction of 
the STPURWE project, and 

4. Identify replacement of the District’s existing disinfection system through the project prioritization 
process embodied in the anticipated Integrated Wastewater Master Plan Project approved at the 
February 29th, 2019 Board meeting. 

 
See attached Resolution No 2019-2157 addressing [1] and [2] above. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
As a result of the proposed action, funds would be unencumbered from the Contract with MSC for the 
STPURWE Project in an amount equal to approximately $2,196,485, less costs incurred by MSC since the 
date of award and prior to the date notice was provided to MSC.  Staff will validate any proposed sunk 
costs prior to issuance of a deductive change order to MSC. 
 
If funding requirements for a flow equalization project exceed the funds unencumbered by removal of items 
A.1 – A. 5, Staff will propose a budget revision at a later date as warranted. 
 
PERSON TO BE NOTIFIED:  
Meyers & Sons Construction, Suez Water Technlogies 

 
5.2



Resolution No. 2019-2157   

RESOLUTION No 2019-2157 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE DEDUCTION OF 
BID ALTERNATIVE ADDITIVES, ITEMS A.1 – A.5  

FROM THE AGREEMENT WITH MYERS & SONS CONSTRUCTION, LLC 
FOR THE  

SECONDARY TREATMENT PLANT UPGRADE AND RECYCLED WATER 
EXPANSION (A.K.A. NOVATO SOUTH SERVICE AREA/LGVSD-MMWD RECYCLED 

WATER PROJECT) (JOB NO. 12600-07 & 16650-02) 
FOR 

LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT 
 
 WHEREAS, Myers & Sons Construction LLC, of Sacramento, California (“Myers 
& Sons”) executed a contract on December 19, 2018 in the amount of $48,622,939 
(inclusive of Alternate Bid Items A.1-A.5) for Secondary Treatment Plant Upgrade and 
Recycled Water Expansion (A.K.A. Novato South Service Area/LGVSD-MMWD 
Recycled Water Project) (Job No. 12600-07 & 16650-02), scope defined in Contract 
Documents dated November 2018 prepared by AQUA Engineering and District staff, 
with the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District (“District”); 
 

WHEREAS, the District has initially, as part of the Total contract price, included 
Bid Alternative Items per Table 1 below: 

 
Table 1: UV Bid Alternate 

Bid Item Description Amount 
A.1 UV Building (Less Caissons) $1,900,000 
A.2 UV Building Drilled Pier Caissons $187,000 
A.3 Owner Selected Equipment (Suez) $589,485 
A.4 Deduction of Dechlorination Chemical 

Storage & Dosing Facility (Excluding 
Electrical Work) 

-$300,000 

A.5 Deduction of Dechlorination Chemical 
Storage & Dosing Facility – Electrical Work 

-$100,000 

 NET TOTAL $2,196,485 
 
 WHEREAS, upon further review by District engineering staff and the Board’s 
Engineering subcommittee that there are more efficient long-term engineering solutions, 
e.g. flow equalization, rather than the proposed UV disinfectant system, that will also 
address anticipated future regulations and restrictions on the District’s ability to 
discharge into the Bay; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Public Contract Code § 20103.8 specifically allows a local agency, 
such as the District, to deduct from the contract any additive or deductive items after the 
lowest responsible bidder has been determined. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary 
District herein approves and authorizes: 

 
5.3



Resolution No. 2019-2157   

1. Deduct the award to Myers & Sons of the UV Alternate Bid Items per Table 1 above 
in the net amount of $2,196,485, less costs substantiated by Myers & Sons 
Construction. Adequacy of substantiation will be determined by the District Engineer 
and the General Manager. 
 

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute a deductive change order to Myers & 
Sons Construction in the amount described in (1)  above. 

 
 

*  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *   
 

I hereby certify that the forgoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a resolution duly and 
regularly passed and adopted by the Sanitary Board of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary 
District, Marin County, California, at a meeting thereof held on the 14th day of March 
2019, by the following vote of the members thereof: 
 
AYES, and in favor thereof, Members: 
NOES, Members: 
ABSTAIN, Members: 
ABSENT, Members: 
  

________________________________ 
         Teresa Lerch, District Secretary 
      Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 
 
APPROVED: 
 
           (seal) 
_____________________________________ 
Craig K.  Murray, President Board of Directors 

 
5.4



 
 

 

 

3/14/2019 
 

General Manager Report 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 
 Verbal Report 
□ Presentation 

 

AGENDA ITEM 6A1 

6A1.1



       AGENDA ITEM   7 
       DATE               March 14, 2019 

 
3/14/2019 BOARD REPORTS 

 

 

Agenda Item 7.1 
 

LAFCO 
 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 
□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 
 Verbal Report 
□ Presentation 

Agenda Item 7.2 
 

Gallinas Watershed Council/Miller Creek Watershed Council 
 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 
□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 
 Verbal Report 
□ Presentation 

Agenda Item 7.3 
JPA Local Task Force on Solid and Hazardous Waste 

 

□ Separate item to be distributed at Board meeting 
□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 
 Verbal Report 
□ Presentation 

Agenda Item 7.4 
Flood Zone 7 

 

□ Separate item to be distributed at Board meeting 
□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 
 Verbal Report 
□ Presentation 

Agenda Item 7.5 
NBWA 

a) Board Committee 
b) Executive Committee 
c) JTC  

□ Separate item to be distributed at Board meeting 
□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 
 Verbal Report 
□ Presentation 

Agenda Item 7.6 
NBWRA/North Bay Water 

 

□ Separate item to be distributed at Board meeting 
□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 
 Verbal Report 
□ Presentation 

Agenda Item 7.7 
Engineering Subcommittee 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 
□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 
 Verbal Report 
□ Presentation 
 
 
 
 
 

 
7.1



       AGENDA ITEM   7 
       DATE               March 14, 2019 

 
3/14/2019 BOARD REPORTS 

 

 

Agenda Item 7.8 
 

Other Reports  
□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 
□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 
 Verbal Report 
□ Presentation 
 

 
7.2



  

  AGENDA ITEM 8A 
                                                                                             DATE  3/14/2019 

 
 

BOARD MEMBER 

 MEETING ATTENDANCE REQUEST 
 

 
 

Date:___________Name:__________________________________________________ 

 

 

I would like to attend the __________________________________________Meeting 

of _____________________________________________________________________ 

To be held on the ______ day of ___________ from ________ a.m. / p.m. and 

returning on _______day of ___________ from  _________ a.m. / p.m. 

Actual meeting date(s):____________________________________________________ 

Purpose of Meeting:______________________________________________________  

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________ 

Frequency of Meeting: ____________________________________________________ 

 

Estimated Costs of Travel (if applicable):____________________________________ 

 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

Please submit to the District Administrative Assistant, no later than 2:00 p.m. on the 

Friday prior to the Board Meeting.  

 

 

 

 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

For Office Use Only 

 

 

Request was □Approved  □Not Approved at the Board Meeting held on __________. 

8A.1



 
 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2019\Agenda Packets 2019\03142019\Agenda Item - Board Requests.docx 

 
3-14-2019 

 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM REQUESTS 

 
Agenda Item 8B 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 
 Verbal Report 
□ Presentation 

 

8B.1



9.1



9.2



9.3



9.4



9.5



9.6



9.7



9.8



9.9



9.10



9.11



9.12



9.13


	Agenda 03142019
	BOARD MEETING AGENDA
	1.
	2. CONSENT CALENDAR:
	A. Approve the Board Minutes for February 28, 2019
	B. Approve the Warrant List and possible Addendum for March 14, 2019
	C. Approve Board Compensation for February 2019

	3. Approve DRAFT PROPOSITION 218 PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE REGARDING FY 2019/20 SEWER SERVICE CHARGE INCREASE
	4. call for bids – on-call Contract for COnstruction projects
	5. SEcondary treatment plant upgrade and Recycled water expansion project – DEDUCTION OF BID ALTERNate ADDITIVES, ITEMS NOS. A.1  - A.5
	6. information items:
	A. STAFF/CONSULTANT REPORTS:
	1. General Manager Report – Verbal

	7. BOARD REPORTS:
	1. LAFCO - Verbal
	2. Gallinas Watershed Council / Miller Creek Watershed Council– Verbal
	3. JPA Local Task Force on Solid and Hazardous Waste – Verbal
	4. Flood Zone 7 – Verbal
	5. NBWA – Verbal
	6. NBWRA/North Bay Water – Verbal
	7. Engineering Subcommittee – Verbal
	8. Other Reports – Verbal

	8. BOARD REQUESTS:
	A. Board Meeting Attendance Requests – Verbal
	B. Board Agenda Item Requests – Verbal

	9. VARIOUS ARTICLES and MISCELLANEOUS DISTRICT CORRESPONDENCE
	10. adjournment
	11. future board meeting dates – march 28, 2019, april 11, 2019 and april 25, 2019


	2A Board Minutes 02282019
	MINUTES OF FEBRUARY 28, 2019
	MINUTES OF FEBRUARY 28, 2019
	Pursuant to Government Code section 54954.2(b)(2), Richardson requested that the following item be added to the Consent Calendar Item 2D – Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District letter to CalRecycle regarding SB 1383.
	Pursuant to Government Code section 54954.2(b)(2), Richardson requested that the following item be added to the Consent Calendar Item 2D – Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District letter to CalRecycle regarding SB 1383.
	ACTION:
	ACTION:
	Board approved (M/S Schriebman/Elias 5-0-0-0) adding to the Consent Calendar Item 2D – Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District letter to CalRecycle regarding SB 1383.
	Board approved (M/S Schriebman/Elias 5-0-0-0) adding to the Consent Calendar Item 2D – Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District letter to CalRecycle regarding SB 1383.
	AYES:       Clark, Elias, Murray and Schriebman and Yezman.
	AYES:       Clark, Elias, Murray and Schriebman and Yezman.
	NOES:      None.
	NOES:      None.
	ABSENT:   None.
	ABSENT:   None.
	ABSTAIN:   None.
	ABSTAIN:   None.
	CONSENT CALENDAR:
	CONSENT CALENDAR:
	These items are considered routine and will be enacted, approved or adopted by one motion unless a request for removal for discussion or explanation is received from the staff or the Board.
	These items are considered routine and will be enacted, approved or adopted by one motion unless a request for removal for discussion or explanation is received from the staff or the Board.
	A. Approve the Board Minutes for  February 14, 2019
	A. Approve the Board Minutes for  February 14, 2019
	B. Approve the Warrant List for February 28, 2019
	B. Approve the Warrant List for February 28, 2019
	C. Approve Contract to Brown and Caldwell for Engineering Serivces during Construction for the Secondary Treatment Plant Upgrade and Recycled Water Expansion (Project).
	C. Approve Contract to Brown and Caldwell for Engineering Serivces during Construction for the Secondary Treatment Plant Upgrade and Recycled Water Expansion (Project).
	D. Approve Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District letter to CalRecycle regarding SB 1383.
	D. Approve Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District letter to CalRecycle regarding SB 1383.

	Item A was pulled for discussion.
	Item A was pulled for discussion.
	Item A was discussed.
	Item A was discussed.
	ACTION:
	ACTION:
	ACTION:
	Board approved (M/S Schriebman/Elias 5-0-0-0) the Consent Calendar item A through D amending item A to reflect Schreibman’s written documentation in Board Reports.
	Board approved (M/S Schriebman/Elias 5-0-0-0) the Consent Calendar item A through D amending item A to reflect Schreibman’s written documentation in Board Reports.
	AYES:       Clark, Elias, Murray and Schriebman and Yezman.
	AYES:       Clark, Elias, Murray and Schriebman and Yezman.
	NOES:      None.
	NOES:      None.
	ABSENT:   None.
	ABSENT:   None.
	ABSTAIN:   None,
	ABSTAIN:   None,
	MARIN LAFCO ELECTION FOR SPECIAL DISTRICT MEMBER
	MARIN LAFCO ELECTION FOR SPECIAL DISTRICT MEMBER
	COLLECTION SYSTEM MASTER PLAN SCOPE REVISION AND REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS – INTEGRATED WASTEWATER MASTER PLAN
	COLLECTION SYSTEM MASTER PLAN SCOPE REVISION AND REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS – INTEGRATED WASTEWATER MASTER PLAN

	ACTION:
	ACTION:
	.
	.
	AYES:       Clark, Elias, Murray and Schriebman and Yezman.
	AYES:       Clark, Elias, Murray and Schriebman and Yezman.
	NOES:      None.
	NOES:      None.
	ABSENT:   None.
	ABSENT:   None.
	ABSTAIN:   None
	ABSTAIN:   None
	REGULAR BOARD MEETING DAY AND TIME DISCUSSION
	REGULAR BOARD MEETING DAY AND TIME DISCUSSION

	ACTION:
	ACTION:
	.
	.
	AYES:       Clark, Elias, Murray and Schriebman and Yezman.
	AYES:       Clark, Elias, Murray and Schriebman and Yezman.
	NOES:      None.
	NOES:      None.
	ABSENT:   None.
	ABSENT:   None.
	ABSTAIN:   None
	ABSTAIN:   None
	BOARD MEMBER OUTSIDE COMMITTEE MEETING ATTENDANCE COMPENSATION
	BOARD MEMBER OUTSIDE COMMITTEE MEETING ATTENDANCE COMPENSATION
	BOARD COMPENSATION FOR JANUARY 2019
	BOARD COMPENSATION FOR JANUARY 2019

	INFORMATION ITEMS:
	INFORMATION ITEMS:
	STAFF / CONSULTANT REPORTS:
	STAFF / CONSULTANT REPORTS:
	1. General Manager Report – Verbal – Prinz reported.
	1. General Manager Report – Verbal – Prinz reported.
	2. Administration Department Quarterly Report – Written – Ruiz reported.
	2. Administration Department Quarterly Report – Written – Ruiz reported.
	Richardson left at 6:15 pm.
	Richardson left at 6:15 pm.
	INFORMATION ITEMS CONTINUED:
	INFORMATION ITEMS CONTINUED:
	INFORMATION ITEMS CONTINUED:
	3. Collection Department Quarterly Report – Written – Pease reported.
	3. Collection Department Quarterly Report – Written – Pease reported.
	4. Engineering Department Quarterly Report – Written – Cortez reported.
	4. Engineering Department Quarterly Report – Written – Cortez reported.
	5. Operations Department Quarterly Report – Written – Liebmann reported.
	5. Operations Department Quarterly Report – Written – Liebmann reported.
	Cortez, Liebmann and Pease left at 6:30 pm.
	Cortez, Liebmann and Pease left at 6:30 pm.
	BOARD REPORTS:
	BOARD REPORTS:
	1. LAFCO – Verbal – no report.
	1. LAFCO – Verbal – no report.
	2. Gallinas Watershed Council / Miller Creek Watershed Council – Verbal – no report.
	2. Gallinas Watershed Council / Miller Creek Watershed Council – Verbal – no report.
	3. JPA Local Task Force on Solid and Hazardous Waste – Verbal – no report.
	3. JPA Local Task Force on Solid and Hazardous Waste – Verbal – no report.
	4. Flood Zone 7– Verbal – Yezman reported.
	4. Flood Zone 7– Verbal – Yezman reported.
	5. NBWA
	5. NBWA
	Board Committee – Verbal – no report.
	Board Committee – Verbal – no report.
	Executive Committee – Verbal – no report.
	Executive Committee – Verbal – no report.
	JTC – Verbal – no report.
	JTC – Verbal – no report.
	6. NBWRA /North Bay Water – Verbal – no report.
	6. NBWRA /North Bay Water – Verbal – no report.
	7. Engineering Subcommittee – Verbal – no report.
	7. Engineering Subcommittee – Verbal – no report.
	8. Other Reports – Verbal – Schreibman reported on the Environmental Forum of Marin Living Building Seminar and Murray reported on a Rails to Trails Webinar.
	8. Other Reports – Verbal – Schreibman reported on the Environmental Forum of Marin Living Building Seminar and Murray reported on a Rails to Trails Webinar.
	BOARD REQUESTS:
	BOARD REQUESTS:
	A. Board Meeting Attendance Requests – none.
	A. Board Meeting Attendance Requests – none.
	B. Board Agenda Item Requests – Yezman requested that the next three upcoming Board meeting dates be listed on the Agenda.
	B. Board Agenda Item Requests – Yezman requested that the next three upcoming Board meeting dates be listed on the Agenda.
	VARIOUS ARTICLES AND MISCELLANEOUS DISTRICT CORRESPONDENCE:
	VARIOUS ARTICLES AND MISCELLANEOUS DISTRICT CORRESPONDENCE:
	Discussion ensued.
	Discussion ensued.
	ADJOURNMENT:
	ADJOURNMENT:
	ACTION:
	ACTION:
	APPROVED:
	APPROVED:

	2B Draft Warrant List
	2C Board Compenstation February 2019
	3 Draft LG Prop 218
	4 Call for Bids - On-Call Contract for Construction
	5 STPURWE Bid Item Deduction and Resolution 2019-2157
	STPURWE - Ultra Violet Disinfection System - Alternate Bid Item Deduction 031420109Rev1
	RESOLUTION 2019-2157

	6A1 General Manager Report
	7 Board Reports3-14-2019
	8A Board Member Meeting Attendance Request3-14-2019
	8B Board Requests
	9 Articles and Misc District Correspondence



